
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
to be held on

THURSDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2017
at

7.00 PM
In the

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Linda Wootten

Councillor Stephen Benn (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Katherine Brown
Councillor Tracey Forman

Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Mrs Sarah Stokes

Invited Cabinet Members
Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader and Cabinet Member HR and Cultural Services 
Councillor Nick Robins, the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

Support Officer: Lucy Bonshor Tel: 01476 40 60 80 extn 6120
E-mail: l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2  MEMBERSHIP 

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3  APOLOGIES 

4  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

mailto:l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk


5  ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 14TH SEPTEMBER 2017 
(Pages 3 - 6)

(Enclosure)

6  UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

7  HISTORIC ENGLAND 

Presentation by Paul Bodenham, Local Engagement Advisor from Historic England.

8  CULTURAL STRATEGY (Pages 7 - 10)

Report SLPD013 from the Chairman of the Culture and Tourism Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

(Enclosure)

9  VISITOR ECONOMY STRATEGY (Pages 11 - 13)

Report SLPD014 from the Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy
(Enclosure)

10  LOCATION OF MEETINGS 

The Committee to consider future meeting locations.

11  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES DECIDES IS URGENT 



MEETING OF THE
CULTURE AND TOURISM 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2017 7.00 PM

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Councillor Linda Wootten (Chairman)
Councillor Stephen Benn (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Tracey Forman
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Ray Wootten

CABINET MEMBERS
Councillor Nick Robins, Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

OFFICERS
Strategic Director (Daren Turner)
Executive Manager Growth and Development (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Lead, Programme Delivery (Lee Sirdifield)
Business Manager, Venue and Facilities (Paul Stokes)
Team Leader, Cultural Services(Graham Burley)
Civic and Democratic Officer (Anita Eckersley)

GUEST
World Wide Marketing (Janet Goodwin)

17. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee was notified that Councillor Ray Wootten would be substituting 
for Councillor Judy Smith for this meeting only.

18. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sarah Stokes.

Apologies for absence were also noted from The Leader, Councillor Matthew 
Lee.

19. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

Page - 3

Agenda Item 5



20. ACTION NOTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 27 JULY 2017

The action notes from the meeting held on 27 July 2017 were agreed as a 
correct record and their contents noted.

21. UPDATES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Committee Members reviewed actions from the action notes of the meeting 
held on 27 July 2017:

It was noted that tourism signs on the A52 and A607, Manthorpe Road, were 
not visible due to overgrown plants.  A request was made to follow this up.

The Strategic Director then read an update from the Leader in relation to 
leisure provision within the South of the District.

The Leader had wanted to take the opportunity to update Members of the 
Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee on current thinking in 
respect of the quality of the leisure offer within the south of the District.

The Leader was passionate about the provision of quality leisure opportunities 
to all communities within the District.  Initial views were that Grantham and 
neighbouring communities were well served by the current provision at the 
Meres.  Further thought would need to be given in respect of how the Council’s 
offer to the south of the district could be enhanced.

There was a whole hearted commitment to retaining appropriate provision in 
Bourne, at the Deepings and also in Stamford, but it was also felt there were 
opportunities to positively and practically enhance the quality of the Council’s 
offer to those communities.  In order that appropriately informed decisions 
could be made, officers had been asked to commission external expert advice 
to assess the quality of the current situation and make recommendations for 
enhancing future service provision.

This would be a targeted review taking into account all the features of current 
provision, including the basis and extent of all current offers.  Proactive advice 
would be offered regarding how this provision could be enhanced whilst taking 
into account comparable best practice and delivery options available.

This work was essential and would need to be undertaken as soon as 
practicably possible because it would ensure that the Council was meeting the 
needs of residents and maximising business opportunities.

Action Note:

To improve the visibility of the tourism signs along the A52 and A607 
Manthorpe Road.

Page - 4



22. CULTURAL STRATEGY

Committee members were informed that Report SLPD012 set the context and 
process by which the Council’s new Cultural Strategy would be informed whilst 
being developed.  The paper promoted a collaborative approach to the scoping 
of the new strategy that would take into consideration the impact culture had on 
South Kesteven in its widest context.  A collaborative approach had been used 
successfully to support and help develop the Council’s housing strategy.  
Further opportunities to inform the cultural strategy would become apparent 
through the work plan of the Committee.

Reference was made to the need for the process to be collaborative and how 
the clear remit of the Committee would be used to identify, focus and help 
create a vibrant strategy for the local economy.  The cultural role would play an 
integral role in marketing the district, enhancing regeneration and creating 
employment opportunities within the District.

The Council would need to have a coherent strategy in respect of how to 
develop cultural services so that the needs of all the communities within the 
District could be met.  It was proposed that the new cultural strategy would 
consider requirements across four areas; Arts, Festivals, Leisure/Sport and 
Heritage.  This would be further developed in the work shop following the 
meeting.

Areas raised for further discussion were:

 Markets and Fairs: where did this fit into the Strategy, should they be a 
separate topic in the remit of the Committee

 How heritage provision would be accommodated
 That a Cultural Strategy would be an overarching/umbrella document 

that would encompass a number of areas such as markets, festivals, 
arts and leisure

 That markets were a particular area that fell between heritage and the 
town economy

 There would be a detailed action plan for each themed area
 That the work shop would highlight areas and topics that would require 

expansion
 The requirement for community involvement
 Identify areas that could be further expanded as a visitor attraction such 

as famous people from an area
 That although there were four market towns, each town had it’s own 

unique requirement and ethos
 The need to provide encouragement and provide local communities with 

an opportunity to develop their own strategies and ideas for enhancing 
their area

 The need to include and encompass the local organisations currently in 
place in each area

Page - 5



Janet Goodwin from Market Strategies had been invited to the meeting by the 
Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy.  An overview of her role was 
provided and she referred to how areas had an individual uniqueness and how 
capturing and incorporating this would enhance the promotion of an area.

23. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 19:35.  

A work shop in respect of the Cultural Strategy followed the meeting.

Page - 6



CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Linda Wootten
Chairman of the Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

16 November 2017

SLPD013 – Cultural Strategy

Decision
Proposal:

Key Decision

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member for HR and 
Cultural Services

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Lee Sirdifield,  Assistant to Chief Executive
01476 406524     l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 18 October 2017

Paul Thomas,  Assistant Director for Growth and Development
01476 406162     p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 19 October 2017

Steve Ingram,  Strategic Director for Development and Growth
01476 406007     s.ingram@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 26 October 2017

Councillor Linda Wootten   Chairman of the Culture and Tourism 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: 31 October 2017

SUMMARY
This paper provides an update on the outcomes from the workshops that have been held 
with Members of the Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee to help 
develop the Council’s new Cultural Strategy.

The paper sets out the key findings from the workshops and recommends the next steps 
to continue to develop the strategy and to oversee the Council’s cultural activities; 
ensuring effective engagement and collaboration with all our local communities.

Page - 7

Agenda Item 8

mailto:l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
supports the outcomes from the two workshops and recommends to cabinet that an 
expert resource is commissioned to help develop the Culture Strategy and to provide the 
necessary strategic guidance to the Council’s cultural activities.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 Following the Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 14 
September 2017, two workshops have subsequently been held to help define the 
brief and scope for the Cultural Strategy for South Kesteven. The initial workshop 
considered the question of ‘How might we improve upon the cultural offer in each 
of our communities?’ The feedback from this session was refined during 
workshop 2.

1.2 Discussions during the workshops provided a clear set of overarching aims. It 
was agreed that the strategy should be seeking to:

 Enhance and support economic growth
 Ensure an entertaining cultural offer
 Encourage learning and participation
 Enrich the lives of residents

1.3 Through the workshops a number of strands for the strategy have been 
developed. Consideration was given to the ‘products’ that the district offers and 
how they should be grouped into areas of focus. Each of the areas will require a 
detailed action plan, which will be developed and delivered with local 
communities.

1.4 The four current strands for the strategy are proposed to be:

 Heritage
 The Arts
 Sport
 The Sciences

1.5 Consideration was also given to where the Council could potentially add value to 
the activities within local communities and support a district-wide improvement in 
the cultural offer. A number of cross cutting themes were identified:

 Support the delivery of Festivals
 Promotion of cultural offer
 Promotion of suitable buildings and facilities
 Dissemination of data and information
 Support to enable access to funding and resources
 Provision of logistical support, equipment and infrastructure
 Provision of expert advice

Page - 8



1.6 Attention was also given to the level of participation and awareness of cultural 
activities within some of our communities. Members questioned whether the 
Council had enough insight into the range of activities, or whether there was a 
risk that engagement would only occur with those organisations that are already 
on the Council’s radar. It was agreed that this was a key task in the effective 
development and delivery of the strategy.

1.7 The workshops showed a clear ambition to drive forward the development of the 
strategy with an emphasis on high quality community engagement. To achieve 
this it was felt that specialist expert support should be procured to work alongside 
Members and Officers in this area, to both help to develop the Strategy on behalf 
of the Council, and using the outcomes discussed in this report provide targeted 
strategic guidance on the Council’s cultural activities.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Consideration was given to the Cultural Strategy being delivered in house. 
However, given the need for expert strategic guidance it was considered that 
the most effective approach would be to engage with a cultural specialist. 

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 The paper recommends that additional resource is commissioned to support 
the development of the Cultural Strategy. It is believed that this can be best 
achieved through working with an external body which has a proven track 
record in both developing and delivering Cultural Strategies. The cost of this 
activity will be obtained through market engagement.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
None

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting 
from this report.  Any issues relating to individuals items for consideration will 
be address as required.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

Page - 9



7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There may be financial implications arising during the development and 
implementation of the strategy and these will be given due consideration at the 
appropriate time.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 The remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee includes giving assistance to 
the Cabinet in the development of policy. The timeline for the development of a 
cultural strategy and the decision to be made by the Cabinet will be set out in 
the Cabinet’s forward plan and the Schedule of Decisions.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

10. APPENDICES

 None

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

SLPD012 – Cultural Strategy: 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18497/SLPD012_CulturalStrateg
y_Sept20172.pdf 

Page - 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18497/SLPD012_CulturalStrategy_Sept20172.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s18497/SLPD012_CulturalStrategy_Sept20172.pdf


CULTURE AND TOURISM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report of: Councillor Nick Robins
Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

16 November 2017

SLPD014 – Visitor Economy Strategy

Decision
Proposal:

Key Decision

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Nick Robins
The Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor Economy

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Lee Sirdifield Assistant to Chief Executive
01476 406524     l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 20 October 2017

Paul Thomas,  Assistant Director for Growth and Development
01476 406162     p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 25 October 2017

Steve Ingram,  Strategic Director for Development and Growth
01476 406007     s.ingram@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 31 October 2017

Councillor Nick Robins   Cabinet Member for Retail and Visitor 
Economy
Date: 6 November 2017

SUMMARY
This paper sets the context for, and process by which, the Council’s new Visitor Economy 
Strategy will be informed and developed. This paper promotes a collaborative approach 
to determining the key components of a Visitor Economy Strategy for South Kesteven 
and considers how this work should be resourced in the future.

Further opportunities to inform the Visitor Economy Strategy will be available through the 
ongoing work plan of the Committee.

Page - 11

Agenda Item 9

mailto:p.thomas@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Culture and Tourism Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
engage in a workshop in order to inform the development of our new visitor economy 
strategy.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 Through recent Culture and Tourism Committee workshops, consideration was 
given to the development of a Cultural Strategy. The linkages between tourism 
and our cultural offer were explored and it was agreed that a separate strategy 
should be developed that focusses purely on the future of the visitor economy 
within the district.

1.2 Tourism makes a significant contribution to the income of South Kesteven. The 
tourism sector plays a key role in the marketing of the district as well as local job 
creation. Nationally, 1 in 3 new jobs created is within the tourism sector. 

1.3 It is important that the Council has a coherent strategy for how to develop its 
tourism offer and its tourism services in the future to meet the needs of all of our 
communities and to secure ongoing inward investment to the district.

1.4 To inform the development of the strategy, Members are asked to participate in 
an interactive workshop session. This will focus on establishing the key strands 
of the future strategy and will utilise external expertise to help develop concepts 
and inform the next steps. Subject to the agreement of the committee, officers 
will schedule an appropriate date for the workshop session.

1.5 Members may want to consider how we continue to strengthen the awareness of 
the tourist offer within the district and the opportunities that exist to broaden this 
in order to attract new and repeat visitors.

1.6 Consideration should also be given to how we engage with stakeholders to 
ensure a truly collaborative approach, increase the competitiveness of the district 
and derive greater benefit for the district by working in a coordinated manner.

1.7 The content of the workshop will be fully documented and shared with Members 
for further discussion and development at a future Culture and Tourism Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 No other options were considered

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 A report is being taken to Cabinet on the 9th November, setting out the 
resources required to establish the investSK team. These resources include a 

Page - 12



new Tourism, or Visitor Economy, lead. The intention is that the Visitor 
Economy lead will take forward the development of the strategy.

  
3.2 Any resource implications resulting from the Visitor Economy Strategy and 

Action Plan will be addressed as required.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
None

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 There are no issues relating to equality and diversity or safeguarding resulting 
from this report.  Any issues relating to individuals items for consideration will 
be address as required.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There may be financial implications arising during the development and 
implementation of the strategy and these will be given due consideration at the 
appropriate time.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 The remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee includes giving assistance to 
the Cabinet in the development of policy. The timeline for the development of a 
visitor economy strategy and the decision to be made by the Cabinet will be set 
out in the Cabinet’s forward plan and the Schedule of Decisions. 

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

None

10. APPENDICES

None

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
None

Page - 13


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 14th September 2017
	8 Cultural Strategy
	9 Visitor Economy Strategy

